
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

 AUGUST 15, 2011 

BUSINESS MEETING 

6:30 P.M.                                                                           

 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE       

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / August 1, 2011    

                                                   Special Called Council meeting minutes / August 8, 2011 
                                                   Council Work Session minutes / August 8, 2011 

 

Presentation of Daphne Utility Rate Increase 

                                                            

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A. FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware 

         Review minutes / August 8
th
  

      

   Ordinances: 

 Pay Adjustment: $.50/hour Ordinance 2011-58                       

 Amending Pay Table for $.50 Pay Adjustment Ordinance 2011-60 w/backup                  

 Road Striping & Marking of Roads  Ordinance 2011-61  

 Tree Removal – Van Avenue  Ordinance 2011-62                       

 

   Resolutions: 
 Declare City Property Surplus Resolution 2011-60   

 

   Motions: 

 Motion for the Finance Director to work with Gardnyr Michael Capital & Hand Arendall to structure the 

refunding and take the steps necessary to refund the 2006 Limited Obligation Revenue Warrants  

 Motion to go out for bid for two (2) F150 Trucks: Street & Solid Waste for FY12 Budget  

 

   Financial Reports: 

 Treasurers Report, July 31, 2011  

 Sales & Use Tax Collections, June 30, 2011  

 Lodging Tax Collections, June 30, 2011  

 

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE-  Lake  

       Review August 1 Minutes  

 C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –     

    D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -   

   Review minutes / August 10
th
  

    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  -  Yelding 

          Review minutes  / July 26
th
  

     Environmental Committee Members Needed 

  

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones  

          Review minutes / April 7
th

  

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette   
          Need one (1) member           

 

    C.  Industrial Development Board – Yelding  
        Gus Palumbo nominates Angela L. Mayer    

          Need One (1) member 

 1



    D.  Library Board – Lake  

    E.  Planning Commission – Barnette   
          Review Special meeting minutes / June 15

th
 

          Review minutes / June 23
rd

 

          Review Special meeting minutes / July 14
th
  

 

a.)  Set  a Public Hearing Date for September 19, 2011 ,and approve advertising to consider: 

 
1.)  Amending:  Land Use & Development Ordinance / Sign Provision 

 Recommendation:        Favorable 

       

    F.  Recreation Board – Reese       
          Need two (2) members 

       

    G.  Utility Board - Scott     
           

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayor’s Report    
            Parade Permit / S.E.E.D.S. / Mama Mia Cook Off / November 12, 2011 

              

B. City Attorney’s Report  

 

C. Department Head Comments    

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:    

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)  Accept Property / ROW / Patricia T. Gipson. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-58 

 

b.)  Change Name of Lawson Road to Champions Way. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-59 

 

c.)   Declare City Property Surplus……….. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .. /Resolution 2011-60 

 

d.)  Apply for LWCF Grant for Tennis Courts at Lott Park. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . ./Resolution 2011-61 

 

      ORDINANCES: 

 

        1ST  READ: 

a.) Pay Adjustment:  $.50/hour . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-58 

 

b.)  Amending Pay Table for $.50 Pay Adjustment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . …. . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-60 

 

c.)   Pavement Striping & Marking of Roads. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . /Ordinance 2011-61 

 

d.)  Tree Removal…………………………….. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-62 

 

e.)  Pay for Appraisals for NRDA Grant with Lodging Tax. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-63 

 

 

 

 

 
2



      2
nd

 READ 
 

a.) MOU with City of Daphne and New Horizons Retail Development……. . . . ./Ordinance 2011-59 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES   

                                  

COUNCILMAN YELDING     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN REESE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCIMAN BOULWARE     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN PALUMBO   PRESENT       ABSENT         

    

MAYOR 

 

MAYOR SMALL    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

CITY CLERK: 

 

DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    

 

 

MINUTE NOTES: 

 

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

4



                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

 

      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

NOTES: 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                   

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                                                             

5



AUGUST 1, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Invocation was given by Councilman Reese. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Bailey Yelding; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; Ron 

Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo. 

 

 

Also present: Mayor Small; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, 

City Attorney; James White, Fire Chief; Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director; Tonja Young, 

Library Director; Richard Johnson, Publics Works Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; 

David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Captain Scott Taylor, Police Department; Suzanne Henson, Senior 

Accountant; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Employees of the City; Bob Segalla, 

Utility Board; Lon Johnston, Utility Board; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Joe Lemoine, 

Planning Commission; Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee. 

 

Absent: David Carpenter, Police Chief; Kim Briley, Finance Director; Richard Merchant, Building 

Official. 

 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt the July 18, 2011 Council meeting minutes.   

Seconded by Councilman Palumbo.  

 

 

AYE    Yelding, Lake, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette                           ABSTAIN    Reese           

 

                                      NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY councilman Scott to change the September 5, 2011 Council meeting to Tuesday, 

September 6, 2011.  Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

PRESENTATION:  Dixie Youth Baseball State Champion Trophy 

 

The coaches and baseball team presented the State Championship trophy to the council.  They will be 

representing Daphne at the Regional Championship games in Carthage, North Carolina. 

6



AUGUST 1, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

2 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to donate $500 from Council President Barnette’s travel 

account to the Daphne Dixie Youth Baseball Team to help the team go to Carthage, North 

Carolina to represent the City of Daphne at the Regional Championship games.  Seconded by 

Councilman Yelding. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED              MOTION CARRIED             

 

 

 

4. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 
   A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE – Boulware 

The next meeting will be August 8
th

 at 4:00 p.m. in the Executive Conference Room   

 

B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

The committee met before the council meeting, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –  
No report.  The next meeting will be August 10

th
 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE –   

No report.  The next meeting will be August 10
th

 after the Public Safety meeting. 

 

Council President Barnette asked for an update on the Sewer Ordinance. 

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – Yelding 

No report. 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Yelding to appoint Mr. Stan Arbaczauskas and Mr. Art Hosey to the 

Environmental Advisory Committee.  Seconded by Councilman Boulware.   

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

5.   REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Mrs. Jones 

The board will meet the Thursday to consider set back variances.  

 

 

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette 

There was not a meeting in July.  The Authority needs one (1) member. 

 

 

7



AUGUST 1, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

3 

 

C. Industrial Development Board – Yelding 

There was not a quorum for the July meeting. The board needs two (2) members.  The next meeting will 

be the 4
th

 Monday in August. 

 

 

D.   Library Board – Lake 

The Adult Summer Reading Program runs from August 1
st
 – September 1

st
.  There will be a special event 

for teens which is the Afternoon Tea on August 9
th

 from 3:30 p.m. –  4:30 p.m.  The library was one of 

200 institutions selected to host The Lincoln: The Constitution and the Civil War Traveling Exhibition.  

This exhibition and tour has been developed by the National Constitution Center, Philadelphia, and the 

American Library Association Public Programs Office with the generous support of the National 

Endowment for the Humanities.  The tour will begin in October 2011 and continue through Fall of 2015.  

The DUC Grant for fine arts and photography materials has been awarded again to the Daphne Public 

Library. 

 

E. Planning Commission – Jones 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Yelding to reset the Public Hearing for October 3, 2011 to consider: 

 

1.)  Annexation:            Audubon Holding, LLC  

      Property Located:       Southeast of the intersection of County Road 64 and Pollard Road     

      Present Zoning:           RMF-6, Multiple Family District in Baldwin County District 15 

      Requested Zoning:      R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential District 

      Recommendation:       Unanimous Favorable 

 

And to reset a Public Hearing for September 6, 2011 to consider: 

 

2.) Annexation:            Right-of-Way of AL State Highway181 

     Property Located:       AL State Highway 181 from Lawson Road South to the Southernmost   

                                            Corporate Limits of the City of Daphne 

     Recommendation:        Unanimous Favorable     
 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED                                 

      

 

 

 

F. Recreation Board - Reese 

No report.  The board needs one (1) member. 

 

G. Utility Board – Scott 

The board met last Wednesday, and they set a Public Hearing for August 31, 2011 to consider a rate 

increase for the sewer and water rates.  This is not fun for anyone on the Utility Board, and they have 

gone back and rehashed it thoroughly.  If the board did not feel that there was a necessity they  

8



AUGUST 1, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

4 

 

certainly would not be making a proposal to increase rates.  They have a capital improvement plan just 

like the city does, and their plan for the next few years is to the tune of $28 million. Volkert 

Engineering is the Utilities engineering company, and they are extremely well respected in the sewer 

and water treatment engineering world, and in order for the Utilities to meet mandated ADEM, 

Alabama Department of Environmental Management, and the EPA, Environmental Protection 

Agency, requirements they have to have certain improvements to the systems both water and sewer  

waste water treatment.  He encouraged folks to attend the Public Hearing. Councilman Scott stated 

that the chairman of the Utility Board, Bob Segalla, and Mr. Lon Johnston were present tonight to 

answer any questions people may have.  Councilman Scott referred to an e-mail from the Vice 

President of Volkert which indicated the types of situations the Utilities can get involved in if it is 

underfunded. He said for a long period of time they were able to fund the improvements by capacity 

fees, because there were a lot of houses being built in Daphne, and now those new houses are not as 

numerous as they once were, and so improvements have to come out of the profits they make.  

 

Councilman Palumbo asked what is the percentage of the proposed rate increase? 

 

Councilman Scott stated from a dollar standpoint it is six (6) dollars for sewer on an average customer, 

and one (1) dollar range for water.  Percentage-wise it is 15%-16% for sewer, and 5% for water. 

 

Councilman Palumbo asked how much the increase was a year ago. 

 

Councilman Scott said he thinks it was in the 10%-11% range. 

 

Mr. Segalla stated 2% for water and 10% for sewer. 

 

Councilman Palumbo commented on the proposed increase, and Councilman Scott asked that his 

comments be in the minutes verbatim so that he can relay them to the Utility staff. 

 

Comments by Councilman Palumbo (Verbatim): 

 

That is in the neighborhood of a 25% increase on the sewer rate within twelve (12) months, if in fact, 

this increase goes in.  I always support the Utilities and still do, and think they do a wonderful job.  

They bring a lot of good publicity to the city, and we, the city, get credit for the job that they do even 

though we do very little  to actually earn that, because most folks don’t understand that the Utilities is 

a separate entity.  I do not know all the ramifications of the financing, but I would ask my friends on 

the Utility Board to consider on behalf of the consumers in a very down economy, or I should say, 

reconsider this increase at this time.  I know all about crumbling infrastructure, we are facing that with 

the roadways in the city, but I don’t understand what crumbled so badly in twelve (12) months that the 

utility didn’t know about twelve (12) months ago when they raised the rates, and yet in twelve (12) 

months there is going to be twice the rate increase that happened just twelve (12) months ago.  The 

article in the fish wrapper asked citizens for input because of the fact that few folks go to the Utility 

Board meetings so I am giving you a little bit, not only as a council member but a consumer.  When 

we raise rates a lot of folks feel like when you pay more for water you are being taxed on a necessity 

of life, and that might be a little bit of an unfair analogy, but there is not a person in this room who 

can’t do without it who can’t just say I will cut if off.  Considering everything that is going on, you  

9



AUGUST 1, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

5 

 

know the largest employer in the county is the School Board, I am using that as an example because 

that is the largest employer, and the employees of the School Board effective October 1
st
 along with 

the employees of the state agencies will all have an effective 2½% decrease, because our legislature is 

going to stop funding their retirement contributions by 2½%.  That is a big hit for a person who is a 

cafeteria worker, grounds worker or even a teacher.  It is a big hit to take.  We have those folks who 

live in Daphne.  I won’t go on and on about all the misery that there is going on with the economy, but 

considering that and the fact that the rates were just raised twelve (12) months ago I would ask our 

friends at the Utility to take another look, and see if this is absolutely necessary now or if this could be 

held in abeyance perhaps until the next fiscal year. 

 

Councilman Yelding asked how many times the Utility has raised the rates since this council was 

seated in 2008.  It seems at one time it rose 33% at one time.  The council has fought not to increase 

garbage rates even though they have had to replace trucks, and that certainly is a necessity. So he 

would like to know how many times they have raised water and sewer rates since 2008. 

 

Mr. Segalla stated there was not increase from 1995 – 2004.  In 2005 they raised the rate 3.2%, in 

2007 they increased a minimum of 60¢, and 2011 2% water and 10% sewer.  Mr. Segalla said that 

they deferred the 2% and 10% one (1) year.  They were supposed to put in in a year before based on a 

utility consultant’s expertise and advice, and they held it off a year and it cost the Utilities about $1 

million in revenue. 

 

Councilman Lake said that he knows that everybody is struggling especially those on fixed incomes, 

and those on social security has not gotten a wage increase in the last few years.  A lot of people have 

not gotten a wage increase in the last few years.  There is a lot of expense savings that Utilities could 

look at.  He knows Mr. Segalla is looking at him, but they have a representative from a Public 

Relations firm that comes to the council meetings, and they pay out he doesn’t know how much 

because he is not allowed to look, because it is funneled through attorney’s fees, and they will not tell 

anybody what they pay their PR firm, because it is supposed to be an attorney client privilege.  He has 

looked at the credit card receipts, and was given notice that if he did not keep his mouth shut about the 

Utility Board that he would have someone run against him, and he was threatened.  He thinks that 

there are expenses that could be cut at the Utility Board.  He sat on the board for eight (8) years, and 

he knows that there are always opportunities to cut expenses, and there could be ways of cutting back. 

He hopes that the Utility Board would look at what their fiduciary responsibility to the citizens of 

Daphne is also, not just to a few employees.  He does not know how much they pay to be on “The 

Work Place in America” list, but when you look at that list who does that benefit?  It doesn’t benefit 

the citizens of Daphne it benefits a few people, and that money, that expense that it goes to is costing 

the citizens of Daphne money, and what it has to be is a fiduciary responsibility to the citizens, and 

holding the rates down.  That is the main reason why they have Daphne Utilities, and as far as 

infrastructure expenses Daphne is in debt millions of dollars and most of that went to building the 

waste water treatment collection facilities throughout the cities.  Those expenses are being paid by 

everybody in Daphne on their pilot tax.  That is what pays for those facilities so he thinks there is a 

responsibility.  When a council member can’t even go and look at the canceled checks and those 

expenses and those receipts there is something wrong.  It needs to be open, and he thinks that is 

something that should be open too. 

 

10



AUGUST 1, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

6 

 

6.  REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

    A.  Mayor’s Report 

No report. 

 

 B.  City Attorney Report 

Mr. Ross reported on the proposed MOU with New Horizon Retail Development.  There are a few 

break points that he would like council to clarify this evening.  One thing he wanted to ask is in all 

their conversations the proposed development by Mr. Hickman is for one (1) parcel of property owned 

by Friday Construction at the entrance of Lake Forest and adjacent to Mobile Infirmary.  The have 

proposed to develop all three parcels so that parcels one (1) and two (2) with one (1) being close to 

Mobile Infirmary on the middle and the third parcel to the east is where Academy will be to be site 

ready, but will not be owned by Mr. Hickman or operated  by Academy.  He needs some clarification 

since he will be developing all three and only own one (1) he needs to know council’s thoughts on 

allowing sales tax one cent (1¢) one penny if development occurs on the other two (2) parcels to be 

used to offset the $1.93 million.  The way he drafted the MOU it encompasses all three (3), but do not 

have that point clarified from the council, and he asked council for direction on that issue.  If no sales 

tax is ever generated then, obviously, nothing would be used on those two (2) parcels to pay down the 

$1.93 million, on the other hand if they are developed by a different developer or owner then one 

penny of the sales tax would be used to pay the $1.93 million, arguably, quicker than just on sales by 

Academy.  That was one issue that he asked for direction, so that Mr. Hickman knows what he has 

when he goes to his investors and know how he can formulate his financial plan.  He mentioned that 

while they had no defined legal model of what type of TIF cooperative improvement district that they 

were going to use after consulting with Preston Bolt and including Mr. Hickman and his lawyers they 

decided, based on Preston’s advice, which he agrees with, is to do a Limited Warrant Obligation.  

There will be no statutory improvement district created, and no TIF created, rather they will do a 

warrant which will evidence the city’s indebtedness to pay the $1.93 million out of sales tax only from 

Academy, and not due and payable until after the CO is issued and not until the first retail sale at 

Academy occurs.  All the infrastructure as it is defined in the MOU would have to be built to the city’s 

and ALDOT’s specifications and approved by the city, and once all that occurred then the funds would 

occur.  They will have to do a validation proceeding in circuit court. There is an expedited process 

under state law to approve that, and he thinks that is very important because (a) it protects the city that 

the city has the legal right blessed by circuit court to approve it and (b) it also gives the developer 

some protection, because if a collateral challenge or subsequent challenge occurred by somebody who 

had standing to bring a lawsuit that it would not affect the city’s legal obligation to pay, but would 

assure it and give Mr. Hickman or his development group assurances as long as Academy was in 

operation or some retail sale was in operation at that site.  Bond counsel will not approve and bless it 

unless that occurs.  The expedited process he hope they can get it done in 45 days or so outside an 

appeal.  That really could not occur, as he understands, until they do the development agreement.  The 

MOU really just gives a letter of intent so that Mr. Hickman can go out and do the things he needs to 

do, and in the interim they will be working on the development agreement which would have all of the 

detail properly put forth in an agreement, which would come back to council for review and 

consideration.  There are other points that could be discussed, but he does not know whether they need 

to be or not need to be that may or may not have been contained in his correspondence.  One of the 

break points spoken about this week was whether  

 

11



AUGUST 1, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

7 

 

bond counsel and the city attorney fees would be paid in addition to the $1.93 million or not paid out 

of that at all or pay as part of the $1.93 million, and it has been agreed that bond counsel fees and his 

fees would be paid either separate from the $1.93 or in the context of $1.93 million they will not be in 

addition to that.  Another issue he wanted to point out is, and Mr. Hickman does not know this yet, the 

Finance Committee charged that the development would have an interest rate not to exceed 7.5%, and 

in talking with some financial advisors and others, on his own time, they have agreed, Mr. Hickman 

would like 5%, the city attorney and bond counsel’s recommendation is 4.5%.  He does not know if 

this is a drop dead issue or not, but that is where they are subject to whatever.  There have been many 

points discussed, but he thinks they have a reasonable MOU to get things started.  He said some have 

asked to negotiate and receive from New Horizons a firm letter from Academy and or KKR, and the 

best information that he can get right now is what he has provided to council which Mr. Hickman 

provided to him. Mr. Hickman tells him that as a condition of a final economic development 

agreement he will provide in sufficient detail and sufficient assurances perhaps more than a letter from 

Academy or KKR, and he does not know that they are locked in on this contract and will agree to it 

which is a proposed 20 year term.  There is a letter of commitment from Mr. Hickman or New Horizon 

with Academy.   He is told that it is proprietary, and at this time Mr. Hickman does not want to 

disclose that, because of other factors which he is not familiar with.  The other information that was 

asked of him about the deal with KKR has been provided.  Some will say that is what they have 

already received, but that is the best that Mr. Hickman can provide at this time. He was asked to get 

some information from Mr. Hickman about who he is and matters that he has dealt with, and that is 

provided in a memorandum from Mr. Hickman dated July 27, 2011.  This is a start, and any input from 

the council now or later would be appreciated. It is his understanding that some of the council would 

like to call a special meeting to deal with this MOU next Monday night to consider it a first read, and 

then from there whatever the next meeting would be, which would be councils call, it would be up for 

a vote.  He is open for suggestions and comments and informational items things he has not talked 

about. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to call a Special Called council meeting for Monday, 

August 8, 2011 6:30 p.m. prior to the Council Work Session to consider a MOU Ordinance with 

New H Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

Councilman Reese stated for the record that he will be abstaining from any vote pertaining to 

Academy Sports as his legal firm, even though they are not currently representing them, has 

represented Academy Sports in the past, and because of this he will recuse himself from any vote 

regarding Academy Sports.  

 

AYE    Yelding, Lake, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette                     ABSTAIN    Reese 

 

                                      NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

Councilman Lake said what concerns him is that this is only one lot and there are three (3) lots.  He 

would like Mr. Ross to put some kind of protection for the city, because the city has other retail 

developments in Daphne that are close to this, and if by any chance any of those businesses are drawn  

12



AUGUST 1, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

8 

 

away from the shopping center and draws revenue from other shopping centers that makes it hard for 

them to pay their indebtedness.  He would like to make sure that they have some kind of protection, 

because you are leaching from one shopping center to bring to another, and that creates a burden to 

pay off the indebtedness of the shopping center that was left, and they are not getting a net gain for the 

city. 

 

Mr. Ross said to make sure he understands in other words if a another business that is presently 

operating in the City of Daphne wants to relocate to that site development by Mr. Hickman or any of 

the other two (2) sites of the other owners assuming to allow the one penny sales tax of the other two 

parcels to be excluded is that right? 

 

Councilman Lake said yes. 

 

Mr. Ross said that if council is ok with this he will put it in the MOU. 

 

 Council would like an agreement from the other two (2) property owners that they are ok with 

whatever council decides to do regarding the one cent sales tax. 

 

Council President Barnette asked council to pull the items that they feel need further addressing and or 

further refinement so that they can come to the table with those questions or the knowledge of those 

debates then they can have a more fruitful discussion for something to vote on.  She asked council to 

provide that information by Wednesday so that Mr. Ross can work with Mr. Hickman to have those 

items worked out. 

 

Councilman Palumbo stated that Mr. Ross mentioned that the information that he requested about the 

agreements between Academy and the developer was currently proprietary and not divulged he asked 

if Mr. Ross said that information would be made available prior to completion of any agreement. 

 

Mr. Ross said that it would not be made available prior to passage of the MOU, but that they would 

work through something and it would be available prior to an economic development agreement. 

 

Mr. Hickman said that the information is considered proprietary from Academy and KKR right now.  

He understands they would like more information about the financial structure and commitment level, 

and what he suggested and what they have done in other public/private relationships like they are 

proposing is that they are not in position nor would they agree to allow the proprietary information of 

the lease, the business terms, the economics, etc. to be made public.  For the purposes of the city 

council as representatives of the government they can ask them to consider a confidentiality 

agreement, and release some of the proprietary terms of the agreement if that would be acceptable. 

 

Council President Barnette said that is an excellent idea. 

 

Councilman Palumbo stated that this is due process so that the council has something in writing that 

this is who his client is.   

 

 

13



AUGUST 1, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

9 

 

Mr. Ross said that this is acceptable.  He has been a party to other governmental entities where there 

has been a confidentiality agreement where information has been disclosed of a proprietary nature. 

 

Mr. Ross said that there is meeting Wednesday morning with him, the mayor, Mr. Johnson and 

representatives of Thompson Engineering to talk about the issue that was voted on several weeks ago, 

and he has had a preliminary meeting with Thompson, and they are very familiar with the situation 

now, and he will report appropriately to council after the meeting Wednesday. 

 

C. Department Head Comments 

Vickie Hinman – Human Resources Director – invited council to the 9
th

 Annual Employee Wellness 

Fair being held August 3
rd

 from 11-2 at the Civic Center.  She reported that municipalities have the 

option to participate in the retirement increase, but this will be discussed at the Finance meeting.  She 

is working on getting information regarding Fire and Police participation. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – reminded everyone that the Taste of the Eastern Shore is 

coming up on August 19
th

, and tickets are on sale. 

 

David Cohen – City Clerk – reported on the NRDA properties Leon Allen, Mrs. Vilai Marino both 

have given permission to get an appraisal, and Friday Construction which is at the north end of the 

Yacht Club, and as an added issue they own  about 100 acres directly behind Hampton Inn. He said the 

state may be interested in applying for NRDA funds to purchase that property.  He has not talked with 

State Lands, but he needs to know council’s feelings toward that.  That land is separated from the city, 

but it is part of the city limits.  It is Valentine Island.  Mr. Cohen said he would like to have a motion 

to proceed tonight, and put it on the agenda for the 15
th

 for actual approval to get the expenditures of 

the lodging tax funds.  

 

MOTION BY Council by Councilman Lake to authorize moving forward with preparing an 

ordinance to expend money from the Lodging Tax fund for appraisals of property owned by Mr. 

Leon Allen, Mrs. Vilai Marino and Friday Construction property north of the Yacht Club and 

Valentine Island.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

Councilman Palumbo asked that a survey of the property be included with the appraisal. 

 

Mr. Ross stated that if council had any desire to pursue he was contacted and forwarded information 

regarding some property  owned by Mark Reddit that is south of the Allen property, about 100 feet on 

the bay. 

 

Mr. Cohen stated that is not connected to any city property, in essence you are buying houses and lots.  

He said you could apply for it, but they have property now that is valid which are wetlands, and make 

sense for city to go after. 

 

14



AUGUST 1, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

10 

 

Council President Barnette said it sounds like this one does not fit the criteria. 

 

NOTE:  Councilman Lake left the meeting at 8:00 p.m. 

 
 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Mr. Kevin Spriggs – Business owner in Daphne - spoke regarding when the revised sign ordinance 

that was approved by the Planning Commission would be on the agenda. He also spoke regarding the 

Utility raising rates and how ADEM has not lessened despite the economic condition, and with this 

type of increase they should have some public forum or presentation where they present cost 

containment maneuvers to the public.  He spoke in favor of the city employees receiving a lump sum 

payment instead of a permanent increase. 

 

Mr. Joe Davis – 30757 Pine Court – asked when citizens will have the opportunity to speak before 

council votes on the MOU, and also spoke about the Utility raising rates. 

 

Mr. Ben Cruitt – Ridgewood Drive – spoke regarding the Utility rate increase. 

 

Mr. Chester McConnell – 8803 Pine Run – spoke regarding the site plans for Academy Sports, and 

ask if the city had assurances that they will take steps to prevent any more storm water run-off. 

 

Mr. Don Ouellette – Elizabeth Drive – spoke regarding the round-about on Pollard Road and signs in 

the right-of- way. 

 

 

8.   RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 

NO RESOLUTIONS 
 

 

 
ORDINANCES: 

        2
ND

  READ. 

 a.)  Appropriation of Funds: Floor Scrubber. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-55 

 

b.)  Daphne High School Stadium / Final Payment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-56 

 

c.)  One-Time Lump Sum Pay Adjustment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-57 
 

 

 

 

 

15



AUGUST 1, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

11 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinances 2011-55, 2011-56 and 2011-

57.  Seconded by Councilman Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2011-55.  Seconded by Councilman Yelding. 

 

AYE    Yelding, Reese, Scott, Palumbo, Barnette                                          NAY     Boulware          

 

                                                               MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2011-56.  Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2011-57.  Seconded by Councilman Yelding. 

 

AYE    Yelding, Reese, Scott                                                 NAY    Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette 

 

                                                                MOTION FAILED 
 

 

 

 

8. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Mayor Small stated he appreciated the council’s time tonight to recognize the baseball team, especially 

recognizing Tyler and having his mom here.  It was very touching when they did win that night for him.  He 

thinks there will be a fund raiser Friday night with a one pitch men’s softball tournament, and they are 

selling 8-10 pound pork butts, concessions at Trione.  They are not just asking people to give money they 

don’t mind earning it.  Trips like that are expensive.  He is a little bit disappointed on the one lump sum 

payment, unfortunately Mr. Lake left, and he felt if he had stayed they would have had a positive vote on 

that.  He said the employees deserve something for getting them this far with the $2 million that they helped 

the city put back.  It would have been good stewardship with the money, because it would not have been 

adding to the yearly budget.  It would have been a one-time lump sum.  Nevertheless they will work with 

the upcoming budget and see what they can do in the upcoming year. 

 

Councilman Yelding said that he hopes they all get good compliments from the good citizens of Daphne, 

and just don’t worry about the city’s employees who actually keep this city beautiful and operate the city for 

them.  He hopes they get plenty of blessings for that. 

 

Councilman Boulware stated that no one said this was going to be an easy job, and there are going to be 

times that he will make decisions that his friends and the employees of the city are not going to agree with.  

16



AUGUST 1, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

12 

 

He said would they really want him up there if all he did was rubber stamp what is coming down the pike.  

He wouldn’t.  He would like to know that the people that are going to represent him are representing him 

period. No one doubts, and no one will deny the service that the employees give the city.  The police force, 

the fireman, public works they all have quality people.  They do not keep poor quality people in this town.  

That is just it.  If you are not going to produce they do not want you in Daphne. That is why the city has the 

best employees he thinks of all the Eastern Shore, and he knows in Baldwin County.  If there is a surplus in 

revenue it belongs to the taxpayer, it is their money.  That is how it works in the public sector this is not a 

private corporation. This is money that is provided by citizen’s taxes what they work for and they pay for 

quality service.  That is what government does.  They are here to provide a service and they provide a good 

one.  If there is excess revenue it belongs to the taxpayers.  He will have people that will disagrees with this, 

but he does not know how people can disagree with the concept of living within your means.  Councilman 

Scott pointed out that the city is doing $650,000 better than projected for this year he is right, but they 

pulled out $800,000 at the beginning of the year to balance the operating account so they are still yet to get 

out of the red.  So they are not living within their means right now.  Add another bonus on it and they start 

looking less like the City of Daphne and more like the Federal Government.  There is not a whole lot they 

can do about what is going on in Washington right now, but there is a lot they can do about how they 

maintain the city’s house.  They are in a position that they can still maintain their house, and they can still 

do it without offending the tax payer.  That is what you do whenever you don’t live inside your means.   

That is his position on it, and he hopes that the citizens and especially the employees understand where he is 

coming from. 

 

Councilman Palumbo thinks that the funds that were not expended tonight should be put toward a COLA.  

He will advocate for a COLA, but they cannot commit to that, because they have to go through a budget 

process.  Every year he makes the same plea for them to get to the budget process timely, which has not 

happened yet, and he thinks they should do it, and he thinks one of the priorities they should have, and he 

thinks one of the reasons for a negative vote, he does not know if this came into play for the other council 

members, he thinks there was a perception that once the one-time payment was granted there was going to 

be a push for the COLA in addition, and he really thinks they do not have the money for both.  He does 

think that they should use that and keep it in consideration toward what the cost of a COLA will be.  As he 

e-mailed the council when they do discuss that he thinks they should not consider it in a vacuum, in other 

words, if they are going to consider a flat COLA does that affect the steps, will the steps remain frozen, will 

the job slots remain frozen.  They have to look at the COLA in that context also. A home run will be 

unfreezing the steps so that not only would the employees get an immediate step, but they will get it next 

year too unless they took action to do otherwise, and the year after that, and the year after that.  That is the 

correct way to do it, and that is the correct way to get the employees some help not a one-time patronage 

payment, if you will, just to be glib about it, it should be a real raise, and he for one will work and do 

everything possible to, hopefully, see that they can do it if it is a 1% or 2% or again to at least grant the next 

step up. 

 

Council President Barnette stated that she actually liked Mr. Yelding’s comments regarding going back to 

the department heads and asking COLA or one-time pay raise.  She does not think they can afford to do it, 

and that was her reason for the negative vote, but if the mayor allows the department heads to do so she can 

bring a motion to reconsider, but they heard Mr. Johnsons response regarding the employees and how much 

it would mean to one of their public service workers.  Certainly she thinks it is better to put it on the card, as  

 

17



AUGUST 1, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

13 

 

Mr. Lake says, but also if it is more valuable for the employees to have the $500 one-time payment with the 

understanding that the two cannot necessarily work together she would be more than willing to consider 

that.  She thinks it short changes, but that is her point.  If the mayor would allow it she would recommend to 

the department heads, if the mayor says it is ok, to ask do you want a COLA or do you want a one-time 

payment, and that is up to them in the department head meeting to decide what is allowed for them to do.  

She would certainly be interested in the feedback.  She would love for her councilmembers to take the 

instruction that the ten (10) year olds did with bringing home the trophy, because she had some good words.  

 

9. ADJOURN 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Yelding to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                 

                             
 

________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        

City Clerk, MMC                   

                                                           Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 

 

       ________________________________                                                                              

       Cathy S. Barnette, 

       Council President 

18



AUGUST 8, 2011 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

                  
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  

  

2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Councilman Lake gave the invocation. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Bailey Yelding; Cathy Barnette John Lake; Ron Scott; Derek 

Boulware; August Palumbo. 

 

ABSSENT:  Kelly Reese. 

 

Also present: Mayor Small; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City 

Attorney; Kim Briley, Finance Director; Vickie Hinman, Human Resource Director; James White, Fire Chief; 

Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; David McKelroy, 

Recreation Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Employees of the 

City; Ray Moore, Hutchinson, Moore and Rauch; Dr. Foster, Principal of Daphne High School; Coach Glen 

Vickery, Daphne High School; Coach Cedric Yelding, Daphne High School. 

 

Absent:  Richard Merchant, Building Official; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Adrienne Jones, Planning 

Director.  

 

3.   MOU / NEW HORIZON RETAIL DEVELOPMENT 

 

Mr. Ross reviewed the terms of the MOU that he discussed at the August 1
st
 council meeting.  He 

mentioned that the property owner of the other two (2) parcels had no objection to the one cent sales tax. 

He said the New Horizon will be responsible for his and Preston Bolt’s fees.  His fee would not exceed 

$10,000 and Preston’s not to exceed $20,000. All three (3) lots will be included in the Economic 

Development Agreement (EDA) regarding development.  

 

Council asked Mr. Ross to include payment of the attorney fees and engineering fees in the MOU.   

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

Ms. Diane Robinson Hill – 312 Whiting Court -  spoke against the MOU with New Horizon Retail 

Development. 

 

Mr. Dan Dealy – 112 Mark Circle – (Verbatim per Council President Barnette) on my professional side 

I provide counseling in government affairs on issues of development, programming and planning, 

specifically now to the Mayor of Mobile.  However, I live over here.  So I take a great interest in this, and 

Mark Circle happens to be dead center in Lake Forest, and if you don’t know where it is you can’t get 

there from here, it is one of those kinds of places we all enjoy in Daphne.  When AIG Baker first began 

to develop the Jubilee Mall we had an opportunity at that point in time to take effect of the waterfront in 

Lake Forest, and instead we allowed that to be used as back of house.  There were a lot of things that we 

could have done better in that agreement. The attorneys have done a good job in establishing a draft, but 

it does not go far enough.  I believe the Council President provided you with a copy of my e-mail, and I 

think lacking any financial agreement the city has no ability to do anything about what a developer wants 

to do on private property should they acquire, and should Academy decide that they want to come in and 

19



AUGUST 8, 2011 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 PM 
 

 

put a store in there.  However, the developer has asked that they participate, and with that we need to get 

the best deal possible.  Certainly, there are many items that are in the MOU which probably could be 

pushed up into the EDA.  There is a lot of detail in there the way these can be done.  There are a lot of 

unknowns at this point that the developer may or may not be able to present because of the level of 

design information they have.  We deserve to know what some of those things are and to weigh in on 

them later.  There are items dealing with the financial capacity of the city as regards the terms of paying 

back that Mr. Bolt and Mr. Ross are working with, and I think we need to pay extremely good attention 

to this in this economic climate.  I am very concerned and would be advising you, were you my client, to 

think about bringing in Academy Sports into an environment where you just put Dick’s Sporting Goods, 

and then you have Bass Pro Shops all in the same geographic market area.  Academy is good, I am not 

saying it is bad, they are a great store.  I like to go shopping there when I am in Mobile, but they did not 

get here in time.  It is their risk to come here, but we are going to be a part of that risk. $1.93 million for 

15 years at, hopefully, not to exceed 4.5% is a participant in that risk.  Get what we can, but realize we 

are diluting the market place. Academy does the same thing as Dick’s, and a lot of what they do also 

competes with Bass Pro.  We have seen recently the numbers of how well the Eastern Shore 

Development is doing.  So make sure we define our agreements well.  As regards the development itself I 

have provided many discussions points that are better detailed in the EDA regarding what might be 

considered back of house which is the front side if you are coming down I-10.  The details which is in the 

current MOU as regards certain items along Highway 90 probably best not to put those in just yet.  For 

our money invested that allows us to be limited to that amount and should that amount have to be 

changed in the future that gives the developer the opportunity to come back and say “but we only said it 

was going to be 450 feet of whatever, pipeline, 375 feet of highway adjustment for $1.93 million.  At this 

point in time I recommend that we don’t put that in there.  The engineering design is not adequate at this 

point, it may or may not be adequate at this point, to define that specific level of linear qualification for 

the money you are being asked to participate in.  The other items that I put in there that, I am not an 

expert, would be the capacity that I mentioned earlier for us to restructure debt should for some reason 

this development not get beyond permitting.  It might get into site development and stall out.  This is not 

a great climate to be doing commercial development by any stretch of the imagination.  The developer 

has given a good list of developments that not only New Horizon has been involved in, but his previous 

involvement with AIG Baker has been involved in. An amount of due diligence on the web indicates that 

two (2) of those have not gotten off the ground yet because that is the way it is it just has not happened.  

Communities have had to work with them, as we will have to work with them once we get into this 

agreement.  Others were done prior to 2008 and they are rocking and rolling. They are in Virginia where 

they have whole lot different population that we do down here. So, I think it would be advisable if we 

don’t rush this particular agreement until these terms are well looked at.  We don’t need to rush into a 

MOU. The document you have before you has inadequacies.  I am not saying we don’t want the 

development or that we don’t need the development, but your only chance to represent the City of 

Daphne and control it begins to occur when the developer asks us to participate. 

 

Mr. Joe Davis – 30757 Pine Court – spoke concerning the lack of detail, and the level of participation in 

the watersheds.  Ask how much are the improvements going to cost.  He asked council to take it slowly 

so they can understand the bits and pieces.  If it is a good idea now it will be a good idea down the road. 

 

 

20



AUGUST 8, 2011 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 PM 
 

 

Mr. Hickman stated that there is a misperception this is not a bond issue.  It is a Limited Obligation 

Warrant. A tax warrant. This is tied solely by the three businesses that would be new to the community.  

If they do not generate sales tax, the developer, New Horizon, does not get paid. The developer, New 

Horizon, has to complete the project before the city is committed to pay him any dollars. The MOU is 

basically a letter of intent.  It creates a go-by list of things that the developer must accomplish, and they 

also have another approval process that has to occur.  That is the creation of the EDA that is the ultimate 

document between the developer and the city. While this is a general framework the details that are being 

worked out between Mr. Ross and himself will go to another level that the city council will again have an 

opportunity to review.  There is an extremely detailed approval process that any development of this type 

must go through.  It has to go through a review of the Corp of Engineers, ADEM, city staff, and it has 

already gone through a very preliminary review by ALDOT.  All of the physical concerns about this 

project have a number of other reviews that it must achieve, must prove that we are going to satisfy 

before they are permitted to start construction, particularly with the watershed.  The watershed problems 

that are being created right now that the people are concerned about are not being created by that project.  

The watershed, and the regional storm detention system that they are proposing that is in preliminary 

engineering that has now gone to the second step where they have investigated all the run-off that the city 

is getting from Spanish Fort, from the interstate and from communities from the north side of the 

interstate.  A portion of that run-off is going to be handled through the storm detention that they are 

proposing as part of the public improvement.  They have also had preliminary meetings with ALDOT.  

There is a great deal of concern about the traffic generation, the traffic flow and any potential increased 

traffic on Highway 90. Those all have to be reviewed and approved by ALDOT.  The designs that have 

gone through to this preliminary point fit all the specifications that ALDOT has on its books right now.  

They are not asking for anything different.  They are not asking for anything out of the ordinary.  They 

have already responded to restricting one of the access points.  In regards to the $1.93 million, as one 

citizen already pointed out, is probably not what they are going to be spending.  It is substantially less.  

This is approximately and $8½ million project that is going to generate approximately $300,000 per year 

in additional sales tax.  Mr. Hickman will be fronting all the money for the project.  He will only be paid 

when Academy generates income. 

 

Council President Barnette asked that an outside engineering firm look at the plans, because they are not 

used to the coastal soil and its problems. 

 

Councilman Scott asked that the fees for the outside engineering firm be added to the MOU to be paid by 

the developer. He stated that Hutchinson, Moore and Rauch should be the outside firm. 

 

The ordinance will be on the August 15
th

 agenda as a second read. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21



AUGUST 8, 2011 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 PM 
 

 

 

4.   ADJOURN 

 

MOTION  BY Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR            NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:49 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                                              

      
____________________________                                                                       

David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

        Certification of Presiding Officer: 

 

 

        ____________________________________ 

        Cathy S. Barnette, 

        Council President  

22



AUGUST 8, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

AFTER SPECIALL CALLED COUNCIL MEETING 

7:07 P.M. 

 

1 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Bailey Yelding; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; 

Ron Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo.   

 

 

Also present: Mayor Fred Small; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; 

Jay Ross, City Attorney Richard Johnson; Public Works Director; Kim Briley, Finance Director; 

Tonja Young, Library Director; Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director; James White, Fire 

Chief; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director;  David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Suzanne 

Henson, Senior Accountant; Employees of the city. 

 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 7:50 p.m. 

 

1. PAVING PARKING LOT AT DAPHNE HIGH SCHOOL 

Dr. Foster requested assistance from the city to help pave the parking lot at the high school. 

 

Mayor Small said it would cost approximately $157,000 

 

Council discussed using the remaining $108,000 of the BP money for the paving project. 

 

Councilman Lake wanted to use the money for city owned property like paving the parking lot of 

Park City Park. 

 

Consensus of council was to participate, but asked the mayor to check with Senator Pitman, and the 

county to see if they can participate in the project.  They asked Dr. Foster to ask the School Board to 

participate.   

 

 

2. COLA INCREASE / ORDINANCE 2011-58: 
Council discussed the survey by the department heads of the employee’s preference for a COLA or 

one-time lump sum payment of $500.  The results were they would like a COLA if it was 3%-5%, 

and if it was less than 3% they would like the one-time lump sum payment of $500. 

 

Consensus of council was to go with the suggested $.50 per hour across the board COLA going into 

effect the first pay period after adoption. 

 

Council President Barnette asked that an ordinance be on the agenda for Monday’s council meeting. 

 

3. NRDA FUND / PROPERTY 
Mr. Cohen reported that there was another property that came to his attention for the NRDA funds.  

Mrs. Sally Davenport’s property that is next to Harbor Place.  The shore line is 100 feet. 

 

Council President Barnette requested this be on the agenda for Monday’s council meeting. 

 

 

23



AUGUST 8, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

AFTER SPECIALL CALLED COUNCIL MEETING 

7:07 P.M. 

 

2 

 

4. LWCF GRANT APPLICATION 

Council President Barnette stated that Mr. Cohen and Mr. McKelroy are working together for a grant 

for the tennis courts. 

 

 

  5.  ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 9:05 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

                                                     

                               

___________________________                                                                                        

David L. Cohen,                                                                     

City Clerk, MMC                                                                                                                                             
       Certification of Presiding Officer:   

 

 

       ________________________________      

      Cathy S. Barnette,     

      Council President        

24



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  

25



CITY OF DAPHNE 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

August 8, 2011 
4:00 P.M. 

 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:03 pm.  Present were Chairman Derek Boulware, Councilman Ron Scott, 
Councilman Bailey Yelding, Finance Director Kim Briley, Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson and Accountant 
Donna Page. 
 
Also in attendance were Mayor Fred Small, Human Resources Director Vickie Hinman, Public Works Director 
Richard Johnson, Revenue Officer Heather Gwynn, and Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen 
 
 

II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
Pfil Hunt, Gardnyr Michael Capital, Inc: Aronov Refunding 
 
Mr. Pfil Hunt, President of Gardnyr Michael Capital, presented information on refunding the 2006 Special Tax 
Warrant for Eastern Shore Park.  Refunding at this time could save over $140,000 a year, $3.5 million gross.  
Discussion continued that the City has no risk for this debt currently, but by refinancing it would become a 
general obligation and the City would then be 100% liable.  Ms. Briley noted that we are approximately one-year 
ahead on our debt-service collections and could look at paying off the principal sooner. 
 
Mayor Small made two points – (1) He doesn’t think the City should take advantage of the savings unless it is 
used to pay off the debt early. (2) If we refinance, we need to realize that we will be 100% obligated to pay this 
debt. 
 
Mr. Hunt also reviewed the option to refinance the 2002 Warrant with the first years savings being $5,982.92, 
and total savings overall of $177,922.42. 
 
It was asked that Mr. Hunt and Ms. Briley look at how soon we could pay off the debt if we refinance and use the 
annual savings toward the principal. 
 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council take advantage of the City’s credit rating 
and refinance the 2006 Special Tax Warrant  and consider the savings to determine 
whether it should be realized on the front end, back end, or to prepay the loan.  
Seconded by Mr. Yelding.  Motion carried. 
 
III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 
A.  Jim Rowland, Occidental Benefits and Frank Webber, Chappelle – Self Funded 
versus Fully Insured Health Care Coverage 
 
Mr. Jim Rowland presented comparisons of rates and savings of self-funded versus fully insured health care 
coverage.  Mr. Rowland noted that savings to the City, if we had been self-funded for the last 5 years, would 
have been over $400,000; however if BCBS doesn’t have a rate increase, savings this next year will only be 
$31,509.  This is mostly because of the reserve the City has built up with BCBS; a reserve that is used to help 
determine rates, but will be lost if the City becomes self-funded.  Mr. Rowland discussed that if there were no 
increases from BCBS it would most likely be in the City’s best interest to stay with BCBS one more year. 
(Note:  Moving from Fully-Insured to Self-funded does not affect the City’s grandfather status) 
 
Ms. Briley noted that she expects a final determination from BCBS on next year’s rates within the next two 
weeks.  Mr. Scott asked that this be discussed again after next year’s rate is known. 
 

26



2011-08-08.doc  2  

 
 
 
B.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity  
 
Ms. Vickie Hinman presented the Human Resources activity update. Open positions include Recreation 
Program Coordinator.  Pre-employment testing / interviewing are ongoing for the following positions: Police 
Officer, Firefighter, and Corrections Officer.  Interviewing is on-going for the Deputy Finance Director position. 
 
The Safety Committee reported that three employees will attend the annual Alabama Governor’s Safety and 
Health Conference August 29-31 in Gulf Shores.  Fire Department employees have offered to have a vehicle 
training course for employees in Public Works who drive heavy duty vehicles or equipment.  Centennial and Lott 
Parks have the engineered wood fiber in the fall zones of the playground equipment.  The next Safety 
Committee meeting will be August 31 at 8:15 am. 
 
 
Ms. Hinman reported on the following HR department projects:  
 
 Firefighter Physical Ability Test - July 22, 2011 
 Police Officer Oral Board - July 25, 2011 
 Benefits Fair Committee Meeting – August 3, 2011 
 Police Corporal Promotional Oral Board – August 4, 2011 
 Correction Officer Oral Board – August 8, 2011 
 Meeting with Blue Cross Blue Shield Representative – August 3, 2011 
 
C.   RSA Update 

 
Ms. Hinman noted that after further research concerning the RSA and 2.25% Rate Increase for Employees that 
she had received an update today that the City is not required to participate in this rate increase.  If the City 
chooses not to increase the employee;s retirement contributions, no action is necessary. 
 
  
IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 
A.  Financial Reports 

 
1.  Treasurer’s Report:  July 31, 2011 
 
The Treasurer’s Report totaling $19,421,404.41 was presented. Ms. Briley noted that the balance is down due 
to debt payments that have been made. 
 
Motion by Mr. Yelding to accept the Treasurer’s Report as of July 31, 2011, in the 
amount of $19,421,404.41.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 

 
2.  Sales and Use Taxes: June 30, 2011 
 
Sales and Use Tax Collected for June 2011    -      $946,356 
Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for June 2011   -       $876,618             
Over Budget (for June)                                    -       $   69,738 
 
YTD Budget Collections Variance – Over Budget - $755,045  
 
3.  Lodging Tax Collections, June 2011  
 
The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $67,544.77 collected for June, 2011.   
 
 

27



2011-08-08.doc  3  

 
4.   Report: New Business Licenses – July 2011 
The list of new businesses, and businesses closed, in July was presented. 
  
5.  Bills Paid Reports – July 2011 
The July Bills Paid Report was included in Packet #2.  
 
B.  Appropriation Request  
 
1.  7 Cent Gas Tax Fund- 
  

 Striping of Roads – 6.91 miles (CR64 / Dimitrios Ave / Frederick Blvd/ Justina Ave / N Main St / S Main 
St / ect…..) - $14,914.81 

 
Mr. Richard Johnson discussed that the unit price of $479.73 per line mile he received from the County 
to do the road striping may be less and he expects to be able to cover more roads with the same 
money. Ms. Briley stated that the funds for this were available in the 7 Cent Gas Tax fund. 

 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating 
$14,914.81 from the 7 Cent Gas Tax fund for road striping. Seconded by Mr. Yelding.   
Motion carried. 
 
2.  General Fund - 
 

 The Lighthouse - $3,000 
It was discussed that all of the Community Agency monies have been used this year.  Ms. Briley noted 
their request is for fiscal year 2011-2012, and could possibly be considered in next year’s budget. 

 
 Tree Removal – Van Avenue - $2,175 

Mr. Johnson discussed the large oak tree on Van Avenue that has died and is beyond the City’s 
capabilities to remove.  A quote from Spotswood’s Tree Service of $2,175 has been received; this will 
include cutting it down and removing it.   
 

Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $2,175 
to cut down and remove the dead oak tree from Van Avenue. Seconded by Mr. Scott.   
Motion carried. 
 
 

 Two (2) F150 Trucks: Street & Solid Waste Dept - $39,748 
Mr. Johnson discussed the request to bid two F150 trucks for Public Works, one for the Street 
department and one for Solid Waste.  He noted he only wants to bid the trucks now and then compare 
to State Bid list cost in preparation for the FY 12 budget; he is not seeking appropriation of the funds at 
this time. 

 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council allow staff to seek bids for two (2) F 150 
trucks for Public Works. Seconded by Mr. Yelding.   Motion carried. 
 
D. Declare City Property Surplus: 
The following equipment was presented for surplus: 
 
Dept  Tag/Veh# Description                      
Civic Center 798  1998 Ford Crown Vic    
 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt a resolution declaring the listed 
property surplus and authorizing the Mayor to dispose of such equipment. Seconded 
by Mr. Yelding.  Motion carried. 

28



2011-08-08.doc  4  

 
 
 
 
E.  Discuss COLA: 3-5% / One-Time Lump Sum Pay Increase / $.50 Pay Adjustment (80 

hour Pay Period) 
 
Mayor Small discussed Council President Cathy Barnette’s request that he asked the department heads to poll 
their employees concerning a COLA increase and/or one-time lump-sum payment.  He noted that the majority of 
employees would like a COLA of 3 – 5 %.  If a COLA of less than 3% is approved, they would like to receive the 
one time lump sum amount instead.  Mr. Scott discussed reinstating the step-increases vs. a COLA.  Ms. Briley 
noted the cost to reinstate the step increases would be approximately $206,000.  
 
Mr. Johnson discussed the down morale of employees last Tuesday after the Council voted down the lump-sum.  
He noted that employees have seen their costs of living increase with no salary increase in three years.  Mr. 
Johnson stated this is particularly hard on the lowest paid employees who have families to support. Mayor Small 
reiterated his recommendation of a $500 one-time lump sum payment to help make up for the last three years of 
no increases and a  3 – 5 % COLA .   Mr. Scott discussed that he would like to discuss raising the pay scales by 
$ .50 (fifty cents) an hour for an 80 hour pay period because this would do more to help the lower paid 
employees.  Ms. Briley noted that there are different shifts in Public Safety that are not 80 hours.  Mr. Scott 
noted that these rates could be pro-rated so that all employees would receive $1,040 per year for the base 
salary. 
 
 
 
V. ADJOURN   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:20 p.m. 

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



Ordinance Committee 

 Wednesday, August 10, 2011 

City Hall Council Chambers 

5:30 p.m. 
        

Councilman Kelly Reese       

Councilman Ron Scott                                                                  

Councilman Derek Boulware            
 

I. CALL TO ORDER/MEMBERS PRESENT 

 

Members Present: Kelly Reese and Derek Boulware 

 

Others Present: David Cohen and Eric Bussey 

  

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

None 

 

III.ORDINANCE REVIEW/DISCUSSION 

 

a.  Workers Comp Insurance Procedures 

 

This issue was discussed and a conference call between Eric, Kelly, and Vickie is 

needed to iron out the details.  The issue will be on next meeting agenda. 

 

b.   Waiver of Sewer Tap Fee 

 

The issue was discussed and asked to be placed on next meeting agenda. 

 

c.   Amendment of Land Use Ordinance for Interstate Signs 

 

The issue was discussed and took no action. 

 

d.   Any other actions or discussions deemed necessary for the Ordinance Committee to               

consider. 

 

IV.  OTHER BUSINESS 

 

None 

 

V.   ADJOURN 

 

 

Motion by Mr. Boulware Seconded by Mr. Reese To adjourn at 5:50 P.M. 

 

 ALL IN FAVOR  NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED

66



 

67



CITY OF DAPHNE CHAIRMAN - Councilman Bailey Yelding, District 1 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING Councilwoman Cathy Barnette, District 2 

Time: 1:00 PM on July 26, 2011  Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall Council Chambers 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  
  The July meeting of the Public Works Committee was called to order at 1:00 PM   

 

Present: Councilman Bailey Yelding, Councilwoman Cathy Barnette, Richard D. Johnson-

Director Public Works, Denise Penry-Public Works Accountant/EMA, Jaye 

Robertson-HMR, Dorothy Morrison-Daphne Beautification Committee 

  

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Work Request Report – June 2011 reports reviewed 

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Report – June 2011 report reviewed.   

C. Public Participation – None 

D. Correspondence – Email from Ashley Campbell regarding Old County Road.  

Councilwoman Barnette wants this issue on the school board’s radar.  She stated that we 

have a problem; the school has contributed and needs to be a part of the solution.  Richard 

will set up a meeting with school board representatives, and engineers to discuss issue. 

E. Correspondence – Email from Tomasina Werner regarding Gazebo and Overlook. 

 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes – June 20, 2011 Councilwoman Barnette made a motion to accept the 

minutes from the June 20, 2011 Public Works Committee meeting.  Motion was 

seconded by Councilman Yelding.   

B. Mosquito Reports – June 2011 Reports not included in packet 
C. Street Sweeper Reports – June 2011 reports reviewed.   
D. Update on Randall Avenue Sidewalks – Making progress.  Possibly make a request at 

the next meeting to move forward with project. 

  

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Tree Removal – Van Avenue (Request for Recommendation to send to Finance 

Committee). Councilwoman Barnette made a motion to send to the Finance 

Committee to request funds to remove tree.  Motion seconded by Councilman 

Yelding. 
B. Woodrow Lane Request to Accept Maintenance (Baldwin County).  Richard Johnson 

presented the county’s request for the City to take over maintenance on Woodrow Lane.  

Request needs to be sent to the Community Development Committee for discussion.  

Motion made by Councilwoman Barnette to send request to accept maintenance of 

Woodrow Lane to Community Development.  Motion seconded by Councilman 

Bailey. 

C. Capital budget request for two (2) F150 Ford Trucks to replace Street Department 

and Solid Waste Department Supervisor’s trucks.  Councilwoman Barnette questioned 

the need for the trucks.  Richard Johnson produced justification for the purchase of the 

trucks.  After further discussion, Motion made by Councilwoman Barnette to authorize 

Richard Johnson, Public Works Director, to seek bids with local dealers.  Motion 

seconded by Councilman Bailey. 

 
 68



V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

A. Report:  Share the Road – Richard Johnson explained the program and the “No Zone” 

program. 

B. Who’s Job Is It? Brochure – Rough Draft presented. 

C. Recycle exchange program – Discussion to request that Churches, POA’s, HOA’s make 

announcements. 

D. Recommendation to name “ELIZA DRIVE”   Motion made by Councilwoman Barnette 

to name Eliza Drive.  Motion seconded by Councilman Yelding. 

 

VI. SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

A. Monthly Equipment Use Report  
B. Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Last Quarter Tonnage Comparison).  June tonnage is 

up. 

 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – June 13, 2011. Minutes reviewed. 

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – July 1 

B. Top Ten List July 2011 

C. Update – Councilman Yelding requested that “we” keep up with KFC – Richard to speak 

with them.  Councilwoman Barnette has questions regarding landscaping for KFC.  What 

are their landscaping plans and what about the Veteran’s Day project? 

D. Councilman Yelding requested that the DBC address the landscaping/pruning of Joe 

Lewis Patrick Park. 

IX. ENGINEER REPORT 

A. HMR Update – Lake Forest project is moving along well. 

 

V. FUTURE BUSINESS 

A. Next Meeting – August 15, 2011 

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT   

The meeting adjourned at 2:11 PM.  

69



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



110 MEADOWBROOK CIRCLE ∙ DAPHNE, ALABAMA 36526 

251-623-1344 ∙ MAYER.ANGELA902@GMAIL.COM 

ANGELA L. MAYER 

 

 

Ingalls Shipbuilding in the 1970’s and 1980’s was at the peak of their employment.  My father, 

James Francis Smith, was their Director of Design Engineering and during my childhood would 

stress the importance of math and science in our home.  Talk of submarine sea trials and trips to 

foreign countries such as China, Brazil and France to negotiate Naval contracts was 

commonplace at our supper table and helped to form my worldwide view of communication. 

 

Reaching out to neighboring communities and building skills necessary for our children to 

compete in the world in the fields of science, engineering and math has been important to me for 

many years and having been introduced to Science Olympiad and being involved several years 

with this organization cemented the fact that interaction with young people does make a 

difference.  

 

The United States on the worldwide stage ranks dangerously low statically in the areas of math 

and science. Whether speaking with Dr. Yorck Sommerhauser, professor of Mathematics at 

University of South Alabama about the seriousness of the global rankings of Germany and the 

United States in this discipline, or with Dr. Masahiro Hashazumi, a visiting thoracic surgeon 

from Japan about the cultural differences in the importance of education and how it is achieved; 

ideas are gleaned to work toward a better future for the young men and women of this 

community.  

 

One of my passions since age 18 has been to promote the God given right we all have in these 

United States which is to vote.  Organizing and running county campaign headquarters, 

maintaining balance between differing personalities within the workplace, manning the polls, 

staying in touch with local and state congressmen and senators on a regular basis throughout the 

years has been an integral part of my life.   

  

Working with many organizations such as American Heart Association, Epilepsy Foundation, 

and St. Jude Children’s Hospital during fundraising efforts has given me the opportunity to work 

with children and adults to further a common goal. Starting at the level of our school age 

children and young men and women, we can build a better future for our country.  As we help 

build the excitement and knowledge within these young people, who are the future of our 

country, we are reaching out to neighboring states and the country as a whole.  These young 

people, as they go out into the working world, will settle in any number of places throughout the 

U.S. and the world. 

 

As director of the Cardiovascular Diagnostic Laboratory, one of my many duties was to 

communicate between Cardiovascular surgeons, physicians, and catheterization personnel. On a 

78



day to day basis, coordinate in-patient and out-patient test results with catheterization data and 

correlate results for open heart surgery.  Communication with surgeons and physicians in low-

stress situations as well as extremely high-stress situations was required on a daily basis.  During 

my time spent at St. Dominic Hospital, tPA (tissue plasminogen activator – ‘the clot buster’), 

color Doppler echocardiography, and transesophageal echocardiography were introduced to the 

medical community in which I was intimately involved with many aspects of bringing color 

Doppler and transesophageal echocardiography to fruition at St. Dominic Hospital.  These were 

medical milestones evolving right before my very eyes!  It was an exciting, and at the same time, 

humbling experience. 

 

I thank God for the experiences in my life which have, and continue, to mold me into the person 

He wants me to be. 

OBJECTIVE 

Teacher position in the subject areas: 

Biology, Chemistry, Physics, Genetics, Immunology, 

Cell Biology 

 

EDUCATION 

∙Basic Medical Sciences Graduate Program, 1 year, June 2011 

∙University of South Alabama, Mobile, Alabama 

 

∙Bachelor of Science, Biology with distinction, May 2010 

∙Minor in Chemistry 

∙University of Mobile, Mobile, Alabama 

 

RELEVANT COURSEWORK 

Calculus I   Linear Algebra    Anatomy and Physiology 

 

EMPLOYMENT EXPERIENCE 

St. Dominic Hospital 

Cardiovascular Diagnostic Laboratory 

Director – 1 year 

Registered Diagnostic Cardiovascular Systems Adult Echocardiographer 

1987-1993 

 

Research Experience 

Ventilator Induced Lung Injury – 2010 in the Department of Physiology University of South Alabama 

 

 

 

 

 

79



 

 

Honors 

∙PEO Scholarship Recipient – 2009 

∙Alabama Academy of Science Travel Award – 2010 

∙Alabama Academy of Science Presentation of Original 

Research – 2010 

 

 

Community Involvement 

∙Science Olympiad Coach – Science of Fitness 2000-2001 

∙Science Olympiad Judge – Genetics 2006 

∙Science Olympiad Judge – Cell Biology 2007-2008 

∙Beta Chi Science Organization 2005-2010 

∙Basic Medical Sciences Organization First Year Representative 2010 

∙Parent Teacher Organization Vice President 2000-2003 Daphne High 

School 

∙Parent Teacher Organization Vice President 2004-05 Spanish Fort 

High School 

∙Sunday School Teacher for Ascension Lutheran Church 1997-2005 

∙Ascension Lutheran Church Board of Education 2004-05 

∙Baldwin County Political Organization Secretary 2000-02 

∙Baldwin County Political Organization Headquarters Coordinator 2000 

 

 

LANGUAGES 

 

∙Latin – 1 year 

∙French – 2 years 

 

REFERENCES 

Dr. Ron Balczon, Professor Cell Biology and Neuroscience 

University of South Alabama, Mobile, Alabama 251-460-6776 

rbalczon.usouthal.edu 

 

Dr. James Parker, Professor of Physiology 251-460-6826 

University of South Alabama, Mobile, Alabama 

jparker.usouthal.edu 

 

Dr. Donna Cioffi ,  Professor  Biochemistry 

University of South Alabama, Mobile, Alabama 

dlcioffi.usouthal.edu 

80



 

81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE 

 

SEPTEMBER 19, 2011 
 

 

TO CONSIDER: 

 

 

 

1.   Amendment to the Land Use & Development Ordinance / 

 Sign Provision  

115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 

127



128



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 

129



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 

130



CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

RESOLUTION NO.: 2011-58 

============================================================= 

 
 WHEREAS, Patricia T. Gipson, desires to grant, bargain, donate and convey to the City of 

Daphne, Alabama a certain parcel of real property for use as a Right of Way for a Public Road, and; 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne desires to accept the herein described real property, and; 

 

 WHEREAS, said property is located within the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Baldwin 

County, Alabama and is more particularly described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Southwest corner of the Southeast quarter of Section 

16, Township 5 South, Range 2 East; thence run N-0021'08"-E, 2589.01 

feet to the Point of Beginning; thence continue N-0021'08"-E, 27.26 feet 

to a point; thence run S-8941'15"-E, 453.45 feet to a point; thence run 

S-8429'04"-W, 88.31 feet to a point; thence run Southwesterly along a 

curve having a radius of 3562.47 feet, a delta angle of 0539'14", the 

chord of which bears S-8720'11"-W, 351.40 feet, an arc distance of 

351.54 feet to a point; thence run N-8948'42"-W, 14.69 feet to the Point 

of Beginning, containing 0.19 acres, more or less. 

 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA that the above described property is hereby accepted by the City of Daphne, 

Alabama. 

 

 

      THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

  

 

 

CATHY BARNETTE, 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

 

 

FRED SMALL, 

MAYOR 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

DAVID L. COHEN, 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

131



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 
 

RESOLUTION NO.: 2011-59 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne, Alabama would like to recognize and 
honor the many achievements of the students of Daphne High School; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama at 
its regularly scheduled meeting of July 28, 2011, voted unanimously to set forth a 
favorable recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne to rename a 
portion of Lawson Road to Champions Way; and 
 
 WHEREAS, upon consideration of the Planning Commission’s favorable 
recommendation and in recognition of the outstanding achievements of the 
students, parents and facility of Daphne High School the City Council would like 
to rename a portion of Lawson Road to Champions Way; and  
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA that the portion of the road and/or right of way 
between the intersection of County Road 13 and the intersection of Alabama 
State Highway 181 shall hereafter be known as and named Champions Way. 
 
 Done this _____ day of August, 2011. 
 
 
      THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL 
CORPORATION   
 
 

CATHY BARNETTE 
COUNCIL PRESIDENT 
 
 
 

FRED SMALL 
MAYOR 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
DAVID L. COHEN,  
CITY CLERK, MMC 

132



RESOLUTION 2011 - 60 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 

 
 
WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  
 

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
     

    

DEPT TAG/VEH# DESCRIPTION VIN # / SERIAL # 
Civic Center  798 1998 FORD CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W1WX122688 

    
    
    

    
    
    

 
          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                   , 2011. 
 
           

________________________________ 

                                                                              Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

       

                                                                                                                                                                                            

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Fred Small, Mayor 

       

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk CMC 

133



Resolution 2011- 61 
 

Land Water Conservation Fund Grant Application 2011 

Lott Park Tennis Courts 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne proposes to continue in constructing two 

additional tennis courts at Lott Park to provide for the health and well being of the 

general public; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the city intends to make application to the Alabama Department of 

Economic and Community Affairs for grant assistance to continue to develop tennis 

courts at Lott Park from the LWCF grant program; and 

  

 WHEREAS, said programs are limited to funding a maximum of fifty percent 

($50,000) of the proposed project cost estimates at ($100,000) which will be used to 

improve and build two additional tennis courts for a total of four tennis courts. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Daphne hold in 

reserve fifty percent ($50,000) of the proposed project cost for the purpose of matching 

the LWCF grant fund assistance, and 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event a grant is awarded, the City of 

Daphne understands that it will sign assurances to comply with all applicable Federal and 

State laws, rules and regulations. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this___________ day of ___________, 2011. 

       

 

      ___________________________ 

      Cathy Barnette,  

Council President 

      Date & Time Signed: __________ 

 

      ____________________________ 

      Fred Small,  

Mayor 

      Date & Time Signed: __________ 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

David L. Cohen,  

134



City Clerk, MMC 

135



ORDINANCE 2011-58 
 

Pay Adjustment:  Full Time: $1,040/yr  / Part-Time: $ .50/hour-  Pay Adjustment 
 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2010-71 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget on 
December 20, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and 
made a part of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the adopted budget does not include an appropriation for an across-the-board 
pay adjustment for City of Daphne employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have evaluated the need for a pay adjustment for 
City employees as no pay increases have been granted since 2008; and 
 
WHEREAS, an annual across-the-board pay adjustment of $ 1,040 has been evaluated 
and determined to be equitable for full-time employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, permanent part-time employees shall receive a pay adjustment at a rate of 
.50/hour; and   
 
WHEREAS, such pay adjustment shall become effective with the pay period beginning 
September 8, 2011. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget is hereby amended to include an appropriation 
of  $ 24,283 for a Fiscal 2011 pay adjustment, as herein set forth, effective September 8, 
2011.  The annual cost of such pay adjustment is $ 315,681. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2011. 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
_________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                          Fred Small, Mayor 

         
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

136



137



138



139



140



141



142



ORDINANCE 2011- 61 
 

Fiscal 2011 Road Striping & Marking Projects 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2010-71 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2011 
Budget on December 20, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has received a cost estimate from the County for road striping 
& marking for several areas within the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, road striping & marking services are required for the following roads 
and additional areas as required (6.91+ /miles): 
 

1.  County Road 64      
 2.  Dimitrios Avenue 
 3.  Justina Avenue   
 4.  North Main Street 
 5.  South Main Street 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that  an appropriation of $ 14,915 from the Seven Cent Gas Tax Fund for 
the road striping & marking needed for the above listed road projects is hereby 
approved and if all funds are not expended on the above listed streets additional 
striping may be completed with remaining funds. 
 
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of ________________    , 2011. 
 
         
                                                                       ________________________________         

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

                       
 

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 

           
 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen,  
City Clerk MMC 

143



 
 

ORDINANCE 2011- 62 
Dead Tree Removal:  Van Avenue 

 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2010-71 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2011 
Budget on December 20, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is a large Oak tree on the City’s easement along Van Avenue 
that has died and needs to be removed for safety purposes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City does not have the needed equipment to cut the tree down 
safely and recommendation has been made to contract with a qualified company to 
do the work; and 
 
WHEREAS, a cost to cut down the tree is $2,175. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget is hereby amended to include a 
General Fund appropriation in the amount of $2,175 to cut down the dead tree on 
the easement along Van Avenue. 
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2011. 
 
         
         
                                                                       ________________________________         

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                       
 

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

144



 
 

ORDINANCE 2011-63  
 
 

NRDA Appraisal Appropriation 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2010-71 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2011 
Budget on December 20, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council is aware of the environmental impact the various 
wetlands in Daphne have to the vitality of Mobile Bay; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council plans to make application for NRDA grant funds to 
purchase coastal wetlands; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to obtain appraisals on Leon Allen’s property, 
Friday Construction’s property, Marino’s property, and Davenport’s property for 
informational purposes. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget is hereby amended to include a 
Lodging Tax appropriation in an amount not to exceed $ 7,500 for the appraisals of  
Leon Allen’s property, Friday Construction’s property, Marino’s property, and 
Davenport’s property. 
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this          day of            , 2011. 
 
         
         
                                                                       ________________________________         

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
 
 

                       
_________________________________ 

                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

145



1 ORDINANCE 2011-______ 

ADOPTING MOU BETWEEN CITY OF DAPHNE AND NEW HORIZONS RETAIL LLC 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE 2011-59 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF DAPHNE AND NEW HORIZONS RETAIL, L.L.C.  

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, New Horizons Retail, LLC desires to develop and construct a commercial 

site for an Academy Sports retail outlet and potentially other retail establishments within in the 

planning and governance of the jurisdiction of the City of Daphne and has requested certain 

economic assistance to develop a proposed retail outlet; and 

 

 WHEREAS, New Horizons Retail, LLC has requested that the City provide certain 

economic assistance to New Horizons Retail, LLC to assist with infrastructure required for said 

project in the form of a limited obligation warrant not to exceed $1.93 million to be paid by one 

($.01) cent of city sales tax generated solely for infrastructure for the development; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne and New Horizons have agreed to a Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) which specifically sets forth the rights and responsibilities of the City and 

the Developer which is intended to be utilized to create an Economic Development Agreement 

which would be subject to additional approval of the parties; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne believes that it is in the best interest of the citizens of 

the City of Daphne to enter into such a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU); 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, that the City Council does hereby authorize The Honorable 

Mayor Fred Small to execute on behalf of the City of Daphne Memorandum of Understanding 

(MOU) setting forth the terms of which are specifically set forth in that certain Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) and made a part of this Ordinance. 

  

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, on this the ____ day of August, 2011. 

 

 

 

       THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

       An Alabama Municipal Corporation 

 

 

       By: ________________________________ 

             Fred Small, Mayor 

 

 



2 ORDINANCE 2011-______ 

ADOPTING MOU BETWEEN CITY OF DAPHNE AND NEW HORIZONS RETAIL LLC 

 

       By:  ________________________________ 

              Cathy Barnette, Council President 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

David Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 


	August 15 Agenda.pdf
	City Roll Call.pdf
	Council Minutes - August 1.pdf
	Council Minutes - August 8 - Special Called - MOU.pdf
	Work Session Minutes - August 8.pdf
	Reporting of Standing Committees.pdf
	Finance Minutes 2011-08-08.pdf
	Finance Backup.pdf
	Buildings and Property Minutes August 1.pdf
	August 10, 2011 Minutes Ordinance Committee.pdf
	Public Works Minutes.pdf
	Special Reports.pdf
	BZA Minutes.pdf
	angelaresumeee.pdf
	Planning Commission Minutes.pdf
	PUBLIC HEARING SET DATE LIST FOR PACKET.pdf
	PC Letter for Set Public Hearing.pdf
	Mayors Report.pdf
	Permit - SEEDS.pdf
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report.pdf
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE.pdf
	2011-58 - RES - ACCEPTANCE OF GIPSON PATRICIA PROPERTY.pdf
	2011-59 - RES -  RENAME LAWSON TO CHAMPIONS WAY.pdf
	2011-60 Resolution-GOVDEALS.COM................pdf
	2011 LWCF Grant Resolution for Lott Park 2011-61.pdf
	2011-58 ordinanceCOLA $.50-hour Pay Increase.pdf
	2011-60 Ordinance Pay Table for $.50.pdf
	2011-61 Ordinance Road Striping Projects.pdf
	2011-62 Ordinance Tree Removal-Van Avenue.pdf
	2011-63 - NRDA Property Appriasals.pdf

